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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

A GOMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

REGISTRATION NUM BER 592488

A REGISTERED CHARITY

REGISTRATION NUMBER 251675

ANNUAL REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION

ltismyprivilegetointroducethisyear'sannualreportofth'eGraceBaptistTrustCorporation.We
acknowledge God's tr,tr.,tuin".. ,nl tnrn[ Him tor'his goodness through another year as we have

endeavoureO to support''nO 
"n"our"age 

the work of the churches'

lnparticularlwouldliketothanktheofficestaffforallthattheyhavedone,aswellaseachofmy
coreagues on the counJir *r..,o giuu therr timel, .ot o.rv in attending tommittee meetings, but also in giving

their professionat aOvlce so wiiilngty. For us-,'iti; irtly a.privilege to serve our Lord in guiding' advising'

heloinq. supportlng and encouraging cfrurctr"t 
'nJOoO;t 

p"o-ple a' they In turn endeavour to faithfully

."rI" ili, i.jcally i-n furthering the cause of Christ'

Thelastyearhasbeenanencouragingorreforus.Thetransferofchapelandmansetrusteeshipsfromthe
Association of Grace Baptist churches trusilngIa) has continueo, ano we are very preased to have been

abre to assist the n.."r5iio" in a number oiotn,liitirvi. on tt'," *''der front, we have continued to expand

our resources tor tne crrurcrres and, in particuiar were able jo.give a number of churches advice on

Workplace pensions, piotu"ing a Fact Sfr""ion tf.." iubject. f nil is likely to be a significant issue for a

number of the churcriJJ;;!,",i," o*rgz6i;;r ;; unoLrstand ir,ut ,rhv have stasins dates in 20'17'

At the end of 2015 the church in Lea, in Wiltshire, closed owing to the difficulties.faced by a small

membership in maintaining the life of the church' However' we are ieaseO t? l"p"I l1t the Grace Baptist

partnership were wi*ng to support the frienJs who wished to continue to hord services there and we are

hopefur that this .ry'i""rJto the repranting 
"iir.," "r-.'rrlr., 

in the viilaie. ltis not atways p,ossible to attempt

to re_estabrisrr a cnurJf,;'h; " 
chaper c-ioses down, but *" 

"r"1frrnkfur 
for the opportunity of working

together with the O'uJ" e"ptitf Partnership when the possibility arises'

A rong awaited event occurred on 16th Decemb er 2O16when contracts were exchanged for the sare of the

former chapel in Brighton. Under *'e requiieriJntr oirns 102, the sales proceeds are included in these

accounts although Jorpi"tion did not tar"-pra'ce untlt 3'o Feoruary 2017' Whilst the sale of a chapel is

disappointinn, *" ,r;'"i'.i; ;;lth;1"ilI" opportunities that these funds present to us'

prease pray that God wi, give us wisdom and His guidance as we seek to maintain the various ministries

of tne Corforation during the coming year'

Kevin Wiltshire q---*--

CHURCH DONATIONS
Thefollowingchurcnes-havecontributedtotheGenera|Fundduring2016:



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIREGTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

ThemembersoftheBoardofDirectorssubmittheirannualreportandaccountsfortheyearended
31 December 2016 to be presented to tn" '"'n"rs 

at the Annual General Meeting to be held on

29 Apri2Al7 -

Theaccountssetoutonpagesllto2ghavebeenpreparedinaccordancewiththehistoriccost
conventionasmodifiedbytherevatuationofinvestments,andareinaccordancewiththe
requirements of the dorporitioniserticles'oin.ro"i"tion (dated 24th April 2010), the companies Act

2006, the Charities Act 201 1, the Stater"nt oi n""orrenO"O Practice "Accounting and Reporting by

Charities" (2015), ,nJ *'" Financial n"porting'st'ng"J ;rns toz' This is the first vear that the

accounts have been prepared under this staidard" The accounts have been prepared on a going

concern basis as there is'sufficient demand for the services provided by the corporation and sufficient

resources to provioe t-hos" seruic"s. rne oirectori consider that there 
-are 

no materiar uncertainties in

this regard. rne account. ,r" subject to auJit The accounts of the Grace Baptist Trust corporation

common lnvestment Fund are set out on-irg_". s1 io +o ano are subject to audit. The accounts on

pages 11 to 2g oo not'in.irO" the trust tunAs oi which the Corporation is a Trustee'

?flJ3li]"'llropilrt r,'urt corporation is registered i1 e^n.o]1103s a companv rimited bv suarantee and

not having a share capital (Re-gistration'ftfr.U"' 592418)' The Corporation is also registered as a

Charity (Registration f.rrru"i zdlolsl,rnJl" recognised as a Trust borporation .under 
section 3(i) of

the Law of Property (Amendment) Act 1926' ihe Corporation is governed by its Articles of

Association.

?fljl?f-:;til.E,"Jitrc_orporation s Articres or Association are that the Board or Directors must

consist of three ottceis - 
-chri,*rn, 

o"p,iv Ln'irman, and rreasurer' and up to 20 other Directors'

The officers are appointed by the eoaro oi Directors at the first Board Meeting forlowing the Annual

General Meeting.

TheDirectorsareelectedateachAnnua]GeneralMeetingfromamongtheordinaryMembersandthe
Deregate Memoers'Jf-ih; e;;p;rrtion.-Meiroers of churc[es thai adnire to the corporation's doctrinal

basis may apply to 
-n".o-rn" 

ordinary r,rr#u"i. ". 
payment of-the annual subscription' Every church

that adheres to the corporation,s doctrinar oasrs and makes an annuar donation is entired to nominate

Delegate Members ,n,i i. entiiled to nominate a mate member to be included in the list of persons to

be submitted to the meeting for election ai a oirector. As a member of the corporation' each Director

is liable to contribute't! to in" ,ssets of tn" corporrtion in the event of its being wound up'

TheBoardofDirectorson6March20lT(thedateonwhichtheAnnualReportandAccountswere
approved) comprised the following:

Mr J N Broome BSc (Hons) MRICS IRRV

Mr P CantY CEng MCIBSE CMIOSH

MrARCoPemanFRICS
MTABKeenLLB
Mr S A Partington BA (Hons) Dipl Arch RIBA

Mr R E PowellACll
PastorPDRelfFCA
Mr J A H Risbridger MA (Oxon)

Mr D W J Skull FRICS MFB (Treasurer)

Pastor D J Steere (Deputy Chairman) ^
Mr K C W WiltsntrJ-n-isi'rpcs ruroo cert PFS PFA (Chairman)

Unlessotherwisestated,eachDirectorservedinthatcapacitythroughouttheyearended
31't December 2016'



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Gontinued)

r:H';ll]iT,*n"o by suaranteg lle corporation is manased bv lhg Board,of .Directors. 
As the

Corporation is also " 
n"'sliit"r"o Charity,.the Directors manage its affairs as Charity Trustees' The

oirJ"toi" 
"te 

also referred-to as the Council of Management'

The council of Management meets four times a year and has overall responsibility for the governance

of the corporation. l,t is particurarry responsinr6 for dearing with matters involving policy' Routine

mattersthatrequireBoardapprovalmayneoeartwithbytheExecutiveCommitteewhichnormally
consists of the Chairman, Deputy Cnalrman, i'"a'urei and four other Directors' The Executive

committee may atso deal with matters r"r'ti*o io-it uv the council of Management' ln addition' the

Executive committee may consider ,riil* tt ,q,"r, ?rt only in the context of making

recommendations to ine c6uncil ot tvtanag;*r;"nt i1" Executive committee meets up to six times a

year. Following the 
"rlr1i* 

ot the Pastorsir,no, ' Consultative Committee was established to advise

the council of Management about tne runo;s poii"i"r and the level of grants to beneficiaries' The

pastors' Fund Consuitative Committee has no executive powers'

Theofficers(Chairman,DeputyChairman,andTreasurer)considermattersthatareparticularly
confidential prior to their being reported to ihe council of Management and they are able to advise the

Chief Executive in situliion, tineie there issome uncertainty as to the correct application of matters of

policy. ln addition, certain matters 
"r" 

,"rittJ to ine Officeis for consideration where it is thought that

they should oe oiscussed bt ; committeo that is smaller than the Executive committee' The chief

L*Z"r1r" attends all officers, meetings. The Officers meet as necessary.

ThechiefExecutive,(MrEriccousinsFCCA),isresponsibleforimplementing.thepoliciesand
resorutions of the oireciors and for attendirig to'atL routine matters that do not involve the council of

Management (as a body of Trustees or-Bo'ard of Directors). He has served in that capacity since

1.r January 2000 and iontinued to serve ri tn" date this report was approved by the councir of

Management.

TRUSTEES' INDUCTION AND TRAINING

Asindicatedabove'theTrusteesareelectedateachAnnua|GeneralMeetingfromamongthe
ordinary Members lnJ tn" Delegate rraemiers of the corporation. Members of churches that adhere

to the Corporation's doctrinal basis rnry 
"ppV 

t n-e"orn" prdjnarV Members on payment of the annual

subscription. Every cr,rrcr, that adheres"tS in" corporation's. Joctrinal basis and makes an annual

donation to the corporation is entiiled to non,linri" Delegate Members and is entitled to nominate a

mare member to oJincruded in the rist ;i;;;J;; ro bJ submitted to the meeting for erection as a

Trustee. As it is important that onri't"r*.s naving,, the desired professional expertise or

comprehensire f.nowieig" ;t tn" *rurcnLsLie nominateO,-tne goarO of Trustees works in partnership

*iin if'" individual churches regarding nominations'

oncenewTrusteesareappointed,theyaretaken.tl,',9u9!aprocess.,ofinductionbytheChief
Executive who ensures that they ,noersiinJ the legal {u1i9s and responsibilities imposed on them as

Trustees, using the Charity Commission-prOfit't'dn:'C93^--ifre Essential Trustee" as a guide' ln

addition, they are piouio"o witn copies 
"i 

t[" 
-c"iporation'sArticres 

of Association - the key provisions

of which ,r" 
"*pr.in"a-to 

tn".,'tog"ti,"i-*itn-coples of the corporation's most recent statutory

Accounts and Annual Report. fney are'Iiro proui,jeO with a set oi tn" minutes of the most recent

Trustees, Meeting (which include a reterencb to all outstanding issues) and the chief Executtve

"niur.= 
that they are fully briefed on all ongoing matters'

TheTrusteesrequiretheChiefExecutivetokeepthemabreastofalldevelopmentsthathavea
bearing on thei*oi" ,i rrrrtees by p.u]oin'g't-h; *itn t"i"rrnt information such as articles from

charity magazines-anJtrieting not"i "ripiti-ry:1":*toJiei 
- such as the Charitv Commission'

The corporation subscribes tJ"Governance" magazine, and copies are made available to the officers'

Furthermore, as they exercise tneir res-pon.iniit"t,91 9" hoard, the Trustees draw upon their

extensive professionil knowledge anO 
"*ioi"r,r" 

- which is,ennanceO by their attendance at relevant

training courses tnrt?oi, prrt oi tneir continuing professional development'
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(Continued)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible to." pr"prlnn *" Annual Report and Financial Statements in

accordance witn appticJbte taw ana uniii"xinglo, o"n"rary'Accepted Accounting Practice (UK

GAAP)

company raw requires the Directors to prepare accounts for each financiar year which give a true and

fair view of the state oJ itrri* of the coipoiution ,.J of the surplus or deficii of the corporation for that

p"ri"o- i. pi"p"iing tnoie accounts the Directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently'

. Make juOgemlnts-and esimates that are reasonable and prudent.

o State whether applicable ,c"orntin'g s[no"ot have been followed' subject to any material

J"p"rtur"t oisctddeo and explained in the accounts'

oPreparetheaccountsonagoing-concernbasisunlessitisinappropriatetopresumethatthe
Corporation will continue in operation'

TheDirectorsareresponsibleforkeepingproperaccounting.recordswhichdisclosewithreasonable
accuracy at any tir"in"Jinancial positiJn;iih; corporation and which enable them to ensure that

the accounts comply with the companies Act 2006. ihey are also responsible for safeguarding the

assets of the corpolriion ,no n"ni" tor irr.g i;onabie steps-tor the prevention and detection of

fraud and other irregularities'

so far as each Director is aware, there is no rerevant audit information (needed by the corporation's

auditors in connection with preparing th";';;d't) ot*1.i"n11e auditor isunaware Each Director has

taken all the steps that he ought to rrave tailn as a Director in order to make himself aware of any

rerevant audit information, and to estao,ir, that the corporation's auditors are aware of that

information.

?f,':filJ:=rective underrying a, the. activities of the corporation is the advancement of the christian

religion, particularly by means of and in ,"toio"nce with'the principles of Particular Baptist churches

practising Strict Communlon'

AIMS
TheCorporationaimstoaccomplishthisobjectivebyprovidin.gchurchofficerswiththeresourcesthey
need so that they are abre to attend t"i[5li.inLir"iru", t"rrn"rrr regar, and. practicar aspects of

church rife, in generar, and to compry *itn tn"i, statutory obriqations,-in particular' The Directors

berieve that these l"iri"", are of 
"oi.iJ"i"oie 

assistanci to c-hurch officers and that this, in turn'

furthers the corporation,s regar ooiective-ls "r,ri"n". 
are abre-to concentrate on their main task of

advancing tne cnnliian ier,gion *nirrt otnli ri*itur charitabre organisations exist within the Grace

Baptist famiry ot.n'JiJ..,L.]i[" ao"ro ot oii""toii consider tnatlne"Corporation is in a unique position

to offer the rever of professionat support-inrt *" are abre to,'owrng to the high rever of professional

expertise represented on the Board'

?#i:irr"""of the corporation's m.inistry is such tl3t iE objectives and the strategies it emplovs to

achieve those objectives do not changl sgnificantrv trom ilai to year. since- the corporation is a

,,Trust Corporation", one of its funda'n"nt'i-'inistries is to 'ci 
a= a Trustee of church property and

various Trust Fund's established unoei'dil;itt a;mission-scnemes, trust deeds' wills and other

instruments. The Directors, aspiration i. tJ pio,iioe ine churches and their members with the services,

advice and generar assistance thattheyU;;;;;e to furfir art of the corporation's responsibitities as

Trustees of various chapels and Trusi ;';;t as compreh"nti'"ry and efficiently as possible The

strategy adopted i; ;;i-;; ini, nr" o""n tnl oissemination-of information through a website and

through the produJtion of fact sheets, and other means as approprlate, to respond to the various

needs of the churches as they have ,rir"n uno to provide p;*i,; sd;v19es 1s-anatter 
of course' The

Directors have endeavoured to intorni;iiolntilr beneficiaries of the services avairable to them

through tne weosiie and ottrer literature, ,rtii"=, and advertising, as appropriate'

4
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(Continued)

+F"t'ljLl:tllilT,ll:lT:XJt"race Baptist rrust corporation makes it dirricurt to quantirv the

success that has o""n ,tni"red during tnE year and .to. 
compare that against the objective set -

especially since eachlnurcn served by [he;oiGrti;; is locally indepenOent and not under the legal

or spirituar jurisdictiorioi in" Directors. rne o[iective set is to proiioe church officers with alt the

assistance they need to ,.un-tn"i,- 
"nur"n"sltreitirliv 

ano the Directors consider that this has been

done. Specificatly, tn" Eorporrtion has o"* ,or" to support the work of churches and their members

in the following waYs:

+fl:'t33,.f,""r],',:".L advisory services comprise the rargest singre aspect ol ih" ministry of the

Corporation in terms"Ji tiori= *orr"o ,no iJr." tne form oi a help iesr wnere.staff are able to provide

answers to specific queries churches mry r",ru". A considerable number of telephone calls' emails' or

queries submitted tn'r"rgh th" webs,ite were aodressed during the year. As such queries relate to a

church's specific situatiJn the Directorr.on''.". that it is inappropiiate to.provide further details ln

addition fact sheets are pubfished, as nece-s.-rrr to ,r"rt.churci'r'officers to the requirements of current

reoisration and good practice. The cost oi piovioing these services amounted to f84,547 (2015"

tda,ggg). The number-of tetters ot appreciatiSnleceiieo from church officers demonstrate how much

these services are valued by the churches'

ff:23,."r:l:,?Jf:ffi,.isters a smar. number of Benevorent Funds which exist to provide financial

assistance to peopre in need, parrcurarry Jervrng or retired pastors of strict Baptist churches or the

members of such cnurcrres. crants totallini .ii,s"99 
*"i1 glY:: to four beneficiaries during the course

of the year (2015: ;i,ZOO ltven to tnre!). Letters received from the beneficiaries highlight the

Iig;itLin"" oi th"re irints tithe tevel of their household income.

ifl:tStiil3l;,:?o:[n,.,.isters a sma, Endowment Fund, the B A warburton Memorial Fund, which

exists to provide ti"r."irr'.rpfort for ,rri ."ruers of strict Baptist churches who plan to enter the

Ministry. The assistance given.by the.corioiation tat<es the form'of grants that are given towards the

cost of course fees or the purchas" of ooJr"s.-.io ,ppiLiti".s for qrants were received during the year

and as at the year 
"iO'in"-#rrnce 

avaita6t" foiOitiiiOution stoodit C965 (2015: f762)'

?lt:^3"ili;ff;,s Gift Aid scheme comprises the rarsesl sinsre aspect of the ministry of the

corporation in terms of financiar trrnor"i.;-i r"pr"i"ntr t[e funds-that aie given to the corporation to

support the ministry-oi specitic churches lro ot["i organisations that further the aims and objectives

of the corporation. During thg_yer.f: t++s]ijio *"i ie;eiveo 1i-ors: t438,306) The sum of t438'265

was disbursed (2015: t432,956) wit, co# nei.gllqgr'r"9 ot eiz,oie (z!r.s: ei t 'gg,t) 
resulting in total

expenditure r.ornlnJ ti-t-+siig+e ,eo.is.-iii+,947). 
churc.nes nenetitting are abre to extend their

ministries beyond tn" [rlr tney woulo' otherwise be capable of achieving'

Ministry Support: . !, r..-r^ rL^+ ^,o airhar aesionated bv the Directors to assist
TheCorporationadministerscertainfundsthatareeitherdesignatedbythet
churches in general, or are g_slrlcled UV in" donors for the t*oft of specific churches in particular'

During the year, tne sum of 86,g71 *""rp"nionl."." activitils 12015: i1,gog). churches benefitting

are abre to extend their ministries oeyono'[ielJ;ii;;y *orrJ otherwise be capabre of achieving'

?["J"S:'r"S?:ffffi.'= as a rrustee,of church property and various rrust Funds established under

charity commissroi'r"nlr"", trust deed-s, *iir, L*i ottier instr,ments ano provides other professional

services to churches or other organisatL-n, *itnin the Grace dapiisi tamiry of churches, as the need

arises. As a Trustee of charitable land 
""Jpr#rtv, 

tne corporation has been able to give extensive

advice to churches regarding the ra.nd l.o "uriiJi.gs tor wni[rr *'"y ,r" respon-sibre as we, as regar

advice retating to comptiance with flr"ii"irrp"i ilriioS"oi on"" again' the office staff were able to

produce the,,DireJtirviicnron , on n"r.,!rt of the Trust"";;ici"i"'Magazine Trust The cost of

providing tnese sliriles amounteo to iz-+,lio tlo1s-,^323,-e8s) ,ttnoush th9 lym ot e13'614 was

ieceiveo in ,"rp".i'oi-.nurg"rnr" ."*i.JJiZ6ii,b7,aeei?t;r*rer detaits are given in note 9



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

iii"ffl^]":q:llHlllSas detined by FRS 102, the corporation works croserv with a number or

charitabre organisation, *itt simirar objbctive.-s. rn particurar, tne corporation enioys cordial relations

with the various nssociations of GracseaJG cn]i.n"r and with the Grace Baptist Partnership' ln

addition, the corporation 
-assists 

tne rruJtels of Grace Magazine Trust in the production of the

,,Directory ot cnurcneJi n. p.ou"tion of.tn" *ugrrinl ."r."-o at the end of 2014, the future of the

Directory is uncertain.-no*"uur, the Directors are iesolved to ensure that by working in fellowship with

the Trustees of Grace Magazine Trust, the-oirectory of-Churches will continue to be printed in its

present format. rn" cnieiExecutive is a Trustee and the Treasurer of the particurar Baptist Fund and

a Trustee of the Baptist Buirding runo._wniriilhere is no formar rink between the corporation and

these charities, the inuolr"r"nt-of the cniei Exlcutive enabres him to represent the interests of the

Grace BaPtist familY of churches'

3m[t [Ti]"",::lJ:Jes and individuars under the terms or the various runds administered bv the

Corporation. ln the "rr" 
oitn" Pastors'rr.J, in" Benevolent Fund and the Ministers'Aid Fund'

grants are made oirectrv to individuals to relieri financial hardship. ln the case of the B A warburton

Memorial runo, granis'aie maoe direcily io-inoiuiorrls who are preparing for the Ministry to assist

them with the costs of their training. rn tne cJse'iiin=titrt onrtgranis, ine grants are made to churches

to assist with the costs of building work and maintenance projects. The Diiectors consider that training

men for the Ministry and assisting cnrrcnes *itn tn"i|. builiing and mainten3ncg Rroiects will help

them to furfir thei*ini.irL. ,nd th;t this witt teao to the advanc"ement of the christian Religion, which

itrlf it the legal objective of the Corporation'

'oifiu:n!5;',,'n:%"rporation incurred an operatins deficit, of f15,335 arthoush this was offset bv

the proceeds arising from the. sale of , ;ilrpa;;o"unting.to f3,369,123 and investment gains of

t6o,555resultinginlnetsurplrLsot*'qi'i[i'rncruoeoiritneseiig'resisonesinglegiftamounting
to f41,g45 which wai received for the ruppb-rt of t,e church in Stoke Golding' ln the previous year an

operating deficit otT+o-,tqg was increas;i;ylt;";tment,losses of f35'47-9 which produced a total

deficit ol L76,228.As referred tO above, contiJ"ts were exchanqed for the sale of the former chapel in

Brighton on '16th OecemOer 20'16. The t"f"-*r. completed 9n- 
3'd February 2017 and net proceeds

after the deduction of expenses amount"i'lo'tg,369,iza. This incrudes the net sales proceeds of the

manse and, as permitted by the frust Oeed, was'Oesignated for church planting projects'

Principalfundingsourceshavebeendonationsfromsupportingchurchesandpersonalmembers'and
interest and dividends arisrng trom ilre Corpor"tions rnvest"ments. A significant proportion of the

Corporation,s income and exfenditrr" ,"frtlJio the Gift Aid Scheme under which donors choose to

support the ministry of particurar cnurcne.-oioiher charitabre activities that are in furtherance of the

aims and objective,s ot'1.," corporation. ini. i, a significant 
-spect ol-tle-lorporation's charitabre

activities and during the year income 
".nouni"Jto 

tiqs,oqo ,015. t438,306) and disbursements to

f438,265 (2015: e+gZ,eSO). The-income i"iJ""ni"red on thL Corporation's portfolio of investments

was 3.3% against a target of 3.5%, ,no ir{" iotrl return acnieveJwisg'7o/o against the benchmark of

12.6Yo.

The corporation does not commit itself to supporting projects beyond the limits of funds that are

avairabre, ano tneieiore the Directors .oniir* inrt tnE isiets in eich of the funds are sufficient to

enabre tne corporli.n io ,""t its ou[gaiions unoer those- funds as they fa, due. The financial

position as at 31 Oecemuer 2016 was coxsioereo satisfactory for the purposls of the continuing work

of the CorPoration.

Fl,l"Yrfi:rTI5,.t"T$t$'rl,o",.rore advance in the ministry or the corporation,.with a number or

initiatives underway but not yet comptei;J-th" oirectors oetioeo that a period of consolidation was

necessary before'turtner initiatives ;;;;';;.;idered. Th;t-adopted.q Ptilt"gic Plan entitled

,,consoridating our position,,to ensure'[-rrt 
"ri.iing 

initiativeJ are compreted satisfactoriry and that

future opportunities Jru'i"ir"o whelth; til;l; rlght and tnii wirr continue to.infruence decision-

making in the forthcoryng year.,The o,i""toirlnteno-to use tne-proceeds arising from the sale of the

chaper and manse in er.[nton to assist wiih estabrishing new churches or supporting those that are

weak. 
- 6
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(Continued)

+[=3]il!H:.,s Articres of Association authorise the Directors to invest funds not immediaterv

required for its purposls in such investm"nt= ,t "V 
for the time being be prescribed by law' All such

funds are invested t,i1n" 
-crr." Baptist'i;i 6'poration Comm6n ll'"ttf11,-Fund' which is

managed by Fund r,arnrglo, Quilter chevioilimiteo, to achieve a robust income yield coupled with

tong-term capitat gr;th-."'rn inftationar! r'.,"0g"' lnvestment performance is-governed by the

Trustees, acceptance of a cautious to moJJrate tSvet of risk and iheir adoption of an ethicar stance

that prevents investment in sector. 
"or"rtg-it.onof, 

gambling' pornography' tobacco and credit

in.tit,ltion, that apply extortionate and exorbitant lending principles.

The Trustees and Fund Managers have agreed.a target assetailocation of fixed interest stocks, gilts

and corporate bonds t*.2.i; ;orities and-structured-investments (35%), and pro.perty (10%) that is

designed to achieve fil"r""6odives tn tni-ansence of a suitabre'standard benchmark that equates

to the requirements oi t]" coiporation, tn" ir*i""r and Fund Managers have formulated a specialist

benchmark against which the performance ot1n" fund is to be monit6red. The income yierd achieved

on the corporation's portfolio of investments was 3'3% against a target of 3'5%' and the total return

achieved was g.7% against the benchm arr-ot rz.a"to. youiattention iJdrawn to the financiar review.

IHBHyT:Pot ,",. as a Trustee for a range of smatt,charities and charitable funds under the terms

of charity commission ."n"r"r, trust oeeis] *irrtor other instruments. The objects of these trusts fall

within the chief objeJive ot the corporat,".;il further detairs are given on-pages 41 to 43' The

Receipts and Payments Account on pagJ';; ;^;;nsolidated suirmary of the accounts of the

charitable trusts that are listed on pages ii ana43. Separate accounts are maintained for each of the

trusts and returns ;;; ;;J" td ifie Ch;;it Commission. where appropriate' The Corporation

administers the fund! or tn" trusts by inr".iiig irre capitat in the Grace Baptist Trust corporation

common lnvestment Fund, and in other autnoris--eo investments. The funds of the trusts are kept apart

from those of the corporation oy means of separate accounting records' bank accounts' and

investments. tnvestm-eitln ih" cornron lnvestment rund is on a unitised basis'

FUNDRAISING
fne Corporation does not engage in fundraising activities'

Tlt"^;f;r::,::rtffiH the risks to which the corporation is exposed ol..3n, annual basis and thev

confirm that systems are in place to manage the risks that have been identified'

The principal risks facing the Corporation are:

.ThelackofvoluntarydonationstofinancetheCorporation,soperatingcosts'owingtothe
professional nrirr" of tn" serri"L-s p'o'U"O to the- cnuicnes most church members find it

difficutt to identify the benefits thrt;i;;;;ided and are therefore not inclined to support the

work.Areasonablelevelofreservesismaintainedtomitigatethisrisk.
o A lack of comprehensive internri"onl,.of systems owing"to there. being only two members of

staff in the office. All the financiai 
"*tiof= 

t'f't"t would be"expected are in place' and a member

of the Board of Directors, wno ii-a chartered Accounta'nt, visrts the office to inspect the

financial records on a regular oasis. ines* controls are reviewed annually'

r The loss of the chief Executive. ine risr has been mitigated by lle "p?o,ltl"nt 
of a Personal

Assistant to work crosery witn nim,ini''ov tn" provisio'n of medicar insurance to faci,tate the

provision 
"i 

pi"rpi tilatment in the event of a debilitating illness'

. The total loss of the office ano onic" records through a riajot disaster' whilst the probability of

this risk is minimal, its effect would be very r"u"r".'iiis rist has been mitigated by the

formulationofadisasterrecoveryplan,whichisreviewedannually.
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T[t=,IJ:i.l=ohL?0"0, the corporatiol a! the year-end amounted to t5,05e,047 or which t214,873

represented rroo*m;'nt'i;;; I.Jiisa,adT-*ni.n represented Restricted Funds which may only be

spent in accordance *itn tn" wishes of the oonori. yori attention is drawn to notes 19 and 26'3'

Designated Funds comprise unrestricted funds received by the corporation forowing the disposal of

redundant chapels. ir,"l" li" two sub-clas-s-iti.riioni *itr,in Desionaied Funds' The support Fund has

been set aside by the directors in order to pr"riJ" rrqpgrt to chu"rches that are undertaking significant

maintenance proiectslnJ to support *..,""*.iit.v ot'*'" corporation, as necessary' This stood at

fg52,526at the y"rr-"no and this is not consideied to be excessive rn view of the possibilities that

courd arise for utirising these funds in tne future. iunos designated for church pranting projects amount

to €3,369,123 and Viiri o" utitised r= oppJ.trniGs arise-ay their nature these wrll be long term

projects as it may t"re n"tr"en five and t"ll""rr t"r a new church to become fully self-supporting'

As stated in note 26.1 ftis the desire of the directors that the costs of running the corporation will be

met out of membership subscriptions, votuntary donations' professional services and investment

income arising from General Fund ,"."*L.. in" in.o*" arising from these .sollrces 
is volatile and

curren,y falls significan,y short or *re sumlequireo. Efforts ,r""n"lng made to increase the level of

income but at present the director. 
"onriO"iinrl " 

level of ,.".e,-"t must be maintained that is

sufflcient to cover sucn Jeticits in order to sustain the work, not only in the immediate future but also

for several Years ahead'

TheDirectorsreviewthesituationonanannualbasisandatthelastreview,conductedinDecember
2016, considered that'thliemaining tr"e i"i"*"s, which amounted to f263,628 at the year-end' must

be maintained at tnaicurrent levellThey consiaeithat, in the event of a sudden and substantial fall in

the Corporation's incJii", il" sum .oi ;pr""ilt"ly, Pa0,000 is required to cover two years'

expenditure to enani!-aiib.r"+ in nano"io o" 
"ornpt"teo 

to enabre the considerabre number of

trusteeships of properties and trust runis 
"'""ntrv 

'held by the Corporation to be transferred to

anotherTrustCorporation,andtoenablealternativearrangementstobep:linplaceforthe
continuance of the wide range of support .inirlri"r currently bei-ng undertaken by the corporation'

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN FIXED ASSETS

There were no significant changes in fixed assets during the year, although expenditure incurred in

2003 (amounting to t21,zzs "i"ort) 
on computer ptogram'ihg n" now-been excluded This had

been carried at a wiifien'down varue ot zeio, but the'DirEctors,cJnsider that the cost should no longer

be included as the original bespoke p,"og,.-;';' h"'" b""n significantly amended since 2003 - see note

21.

iH"tbf""1il=nttt" "".r,oered 
the guidance pubrished by,the.charity commission on the provision of

pubtic benetit rnei"co"nn* tn"t t[",.ni"i,Iui""ilve of'tne Corporation is the advancement of the

Christian religion tri,non is a charitabr" p"po# unoer taw) ano ir''t tn" Corporation provides public

benefit by offering piot".sionrf and trustJJ J*,.", - including the provision-of advice and informatton

- free of charse.trl'i'i.ii,"rrffi,ti';;4;er*il:ilg^.l,l"Jcommunion' 
Grants and loans are also

made available to such churches. Additionally, grants are paro irom various Endowment Funds to the

members of those;;;"h;r where ilr"v qrri',iv Jnder the terms of the trusts of the funds'

[=.,JilJffiill?l[BhL"Jrs to remunerate starr at a revetwhich recosnises the Biblical principle that

the rabourer is worthy of his hire. wn"reJils appropriate to oo so, tni goara de-termines the level of

sararies oy reterence,to tne.gorng ,.rt"ioiii"iio;'wn"o tn"r"-ir no meaningfur comparison - and

specifica,y so far ,. t'n"-cni,it rx-ecutive-is-"o,i""rneo - eoa; Members are guided by reference to

the salary that an employee might command in the open market' Alongside this' and in both cases'

due consideration is given to the tevel 
"i.iip".J. 

t't3!fnyt91"s served 6y the Corporation are able to

pay and the financialoresources that are .uliilur" within the corporation salaries are reviewed on an

annuat basis, either at an Officer.' rVr""tli'g-oi OV ilt" ,tl:g-'!i! 
-Committee 

and a recommendation is

submitted to tfre e-;aid of Directors for coniideraiion at their meeting in December'
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This report has been prepared in accordance wrth the speciar provisions of part 15 of the companies

Act 2006 relating to smali companies, ,no *J='rppio,"i ov the Board of Directors on 6 March 2017'
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-

K C W Wiltshire
Chairman



INDEPENDENTAUDIToR'SREPoRTToTHEMEMBERSoF
GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

we have audited the financiar statements of Grace Baptist Trust corporation for the year ended

3l.tDecember2ol6,onpages 11to2g. tneiinanciar reportingframeworkthathasbeenappriedintheir

oreparation is appricabre rJw and United xingo;, Accbuntin-g standards (united Kingdom Generally

hccepted Accounting Practice)'

Thisreportismadesolelytothecompany'smembers,asabody,inaccordancewithchapter3ofPart
16 of the Companies ndt ZOOO. Our'audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the

company,s members those matters We are-required to state to,them in a Report of the Auditors and for

no other purpose. To the fullest extent poriti"o nv law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to

anyone other than tlu 
"o*prny 

and the co*prnit members as a body' for our audit work' for this

refort, or for the opinions we have formed'

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor

As explained more fully in the Trustees' nesponsibilities statement set out on page 4, the trustees (who

are also the directors t tn" charitable company for the.P{pq::s of company law) are responsible for the

preparation of the financial statements and'for neing sailstied that they give a true and fair view'

our responsibirity is to audrt and express an opinion on _the 
financiar statements in accordance with

applicable law and tnt"rnation"l standardJ * u,,iJiting (uK and lreland). Those standards require us to

";ilprv 
*tn Auditing p*.1L". Board's (ApB) Ethical standards for Auditors'

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit invorves obtaining evidence about the amounts and discrosures in the financial statements

sufficient to give l."r.onrorJ assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement'

whether caused ov tirro oi error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are

appropriatetothecharitablecompany,Scircumstancesandhavebeenconsistentlyappliedand
adequately disclosed; the reason-ableness of significant accounting estimates T39," 

by the trustees; and

the overalt pr"."ntJiion-oiif," financial siatL[rents' ln additioi, we read all the financial and non-

financial information in the report of the directors to identify material inconsistencies with the audited

financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on' or

materiary inconsistenl *iiti, ir.," x,iowr6oge-r.quli"o by us in'the course of performing our audit' lf we

become aware of any apparent material"mlsstatementi or inconsistencies we consider the implications

for our rePort.

Opinion on financial statement
ln our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31't December

2016 and its incoming |."rorr""i and application of resources, including its income and

expenditure, for the year then ended;

.havebeenproperlypreparedinaccordancewithUnitedKingdomGenerallyAccepted
Accounting Practice; and

.haveneenpr"pured'inaccordancewiththerequirementsofthecompaniesAct2006'

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

ln our opinion tn""intoimation given ln ttre Trustees' annual Report (Report of the Directors) for the

financial year for *f',i"fi tt'," finaniial statemenis ,i" p,"p""d is consistent with the financial statements'

Mattersonwhichwearerequiredtoteportbyexception
we have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the companies Act 2006 requires us

to rePort to You if, in our oPinion:

.adequateaccountingrecordshavenotbeenkeptorreturnsadequateforouraudithavenot
been received from branches not visited by us; or

r the financial statements are not in agreemLnt with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of trustees' remLineration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanatlons we require for our audit or

o the trustees were not entifled to pi"pur" the financial statements in accordance with the small

companies regime and take ,Otir.irg" of the '*"it "o*panies 
exemption in preparing the

Annual RePort.

For and on behalf of Brewers'
23

Brewers Chartered Accountants
Bourne House,
Queen Street, Gomshall,
Surrey GUs gLY

StatutorY Auditor
.Mai<,\^ =.1 1o



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds

General Designated

Notes s f c

Endowment
Funds

€

Total Total
Funds Funds
2016 2015

te

lncome and Endowments from:

Donations and Legacies

Charitable Activities

lnvestments

Other

Total

Expenditure on:

Charitable Activities

Total

lncome / (ExPenditure)
Before Transfers

Transfers between Funds

lncome / (ExPenditure)
After Transfers

Gains / (Losses) on lnvestments

Net lncome / (ExPenditure)

Net Movement in Funds

Reconciliation of Funds:

Total Funds brought forward

as at 1 January 2016

Total Funds carried forward
as at 31 December 2016 19

31.428 3,392,590 500,864

120,781 450,436

123 58,473 37,580

458,654 443,199

38,755 38,349

3,369,123

123 3,925,005 519,128

571,217 559,877

559,8??

123 3,353,788 (40,749)

123 3,353,788 (40,749)

9,671 60,555 (35'479)

9194 3.414,343 (76.228\

9,794 3,414,343 (76'228)

9,338

13,604

8,486

120.781

(8e,353)

97,633

8,280

12,625

20.905

20,905

10

23,457

3,369,123

3,392,590

(90,000)

3,302,590

38,259

3,340,849

3,340,849

49,O12

445,040

6,812

450,436

50,428

(7,633)

42,795

42.795

42,795

19

242,723 980,800 216,102 205,079 1,644,704 1,720'932

263,628 4,321,649 258,897 214.873 5,059,047 1.644,704

your attention is drawn to note 1 showing comparative figures for the previous year

11



GRAGE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

SUMMARY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes
2016

f

3,924,882

571,217

3,353,665

2015
f

5'19,053

559,877

(40,824)

Total lncome

Total ExPenditure

Surplus on Disposal of lnvestments

Surplus on Ordinary Activities

Net lncome for the Year

20 3,353,665 (40,824)

3,353,665 (40,824\

Statement of Financial Activities
15 lo 29, Provide full informationThe Summary lncome and Expenditure Account is derived from the

,;;;g; 11 which, together with the notes to the accounts on pages

on in""rou"ments ouirng the year on all the funds of the corporation

12



Fixed Assets:
Tangible Assets

lnvestments

Total Fixed Assets

Gurrent Assets:
Debtors (falling due after one year)

Debtors (tatting due within one year)

Cash at Bank and in Hand

Total Current Assets

Liabilities:
Creditors (falling due within one year)

Net Current Assets

Total Assets less Current Liabilities

Total Net Assets

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes

21

22

2016
€t

23
23

53,000
3,402.445
3,455,445

424.147

3,879,592

(8,545)

4,321,649
263.628

'1 ,188,000

1J 88p00

3,871,A47

5,059,047

5,059,047

214,873

258,897

4,585,277

5,059.047

38,250
19.124
57,374

467,211

524,585

(e,143)

980,800
242,723

2015
f

1,940

1,127,322

T7zs2o2

515,442

Tn44,?04

1,644,704

205,079

216,102

1,223,523

1,644,704

24

25

The Funds of the GharitY:

Endowment Funds

Restricted lncome Funds

Unrestricted Funds:

Designated Funds
General Funds

Total Unrestricted Funds

TotalCharitY Funds 26

The Balance Sheet and

6 March 2017.

These financial statements have been prepared

"i il; 
Companies Act 2006 relating to small

inS f 02. Tl"re Company is limited by guarantee'

in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15

"*prnl"t 
and the Financial Reporting Standard

ffre negistration Number of the Company is 592488'

the Accounts on pages 11 lo 29 were approved by the Board of Directors on

'13

q--
K C W Wlltshiie



f

Net lncome / (Expenditure) for the Year:

As per Statement of Financial Activities

Adjustments forl
Depreciation 

'1'940

ioi".i'7l"sses on lnvestments (60'555)

Dividends and lnterest from lnvestments (38'755)

Lorr. made in furtherance of objects (30'000)

nlpryr"nt of loans made in furtherance of objects 1?'!?9,
(lncrease) / Decrease in Debtors (3'380'821)

iffi;t;iio""t"ri"l in creditors (5e8)

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
rtr"ibuth Provided.by i (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities
Dividends and lnterest from lnvestments

Purchase of lnvestments
ruet Casn Provided by / (Used in) lnvesting Activities

lncrease / (Decrease) during the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1 January 2016

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31 December 2016

Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in Hand
f.toti"" Deposits (less than three months)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016
€

3,414,343

(3,496,039)

(81,696)

38,755
(123\

38,632

(43,064)

467,211

424,147

106
424,041
424,147

2015
f

(76,228)

3,328
35,479

(38,349)

65,000
(8,6e1)

250

38,349
(75)

57.017

(19,211)

38.274

19,063

448,148

467,211

101

467.110
467,211

14



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

I,STATEMENToFFINANCIALACTIVITIES(PREVIoUSYEAR)

Unrestricted Unrestricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds

General Designated

Endowment
Funds

E

€-591)

(5,591)

Total Total
Funds Funds
2015 2014

et

37,580 30,178

443,199 406,488

38,349 36,229

(40,74e) (52,418)

(40,749) (52,418)

(35,479) 27,120

Notes

lncome and Endowments from:

Donations and Legacies

Charitable Activities

lnvestments

Other

Total

Expenditure on:

Charitable Activities

Total

lncome / (ExPenditure)
Before Transfers

Transfers between Funds

lncome / (ExPenditure)
After Transfers

Gains / (Losses) on lnvestments

Net lncome / (ExPenditure)

Net Movement in Funds

Reconciliation of Funds:

Total Funds brought fon'vard

as at 1 January 2015

Total Funds carried forward
as at 31 December 2015

12,883

4,858

8,591

(e3,581)

88,528

(5,053)

(7,3e7)

(12a50)

(12,450)

35

23j27

23,162

(80,000)

(56,838)

(22,416)

trewl

(7e,254)

24,622

438,306

6,63'l

75

26.332 23.162 469.559 75 519,'128 472.895

1 19,913 439,964 559,877 525,313

439,964

29,595

(8,528)

21,067

559,877 525,313

75

(5,666)

(76.228) (25,2e8)21.067

21,067 (76,228) (25,2e8)

255,173 1,060,054 195,035 210,670 1]20,932 1,746'230

242.723 980.800 216,102 205.079 1.644.704 1.720.932

15



2.

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

CONSTITUTION

2.1 The Grace Baptist Trust corporation is registered in England 1t--'.^c:TPany 
limited by

guarantee and not having a share.upitrr (iegistration-Number 592488)' The Corporation

is also registereJasi ch'arity tn"gi=diution trtJmoer 251675), and is recognised as aTrust

Corporation unJ"i section gtll of 
-if"," 

f-"* of Property (Amendment) Act 1926' The

Corporation is governed by its Articles of Association'

ACGOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Accounting Standards and Conventions
These accounts have been pr"prr"J h accordance with the historic cost convention as

modified by the revaluation oi inu"rtr"nts, and are in accordance with the requirements of

the Corporation's nrtctes of Associaii"l 1iri9O34th April 2010)' the Companies Act 2006'

the charities Act 20l'l, the statement of Recommended Practice "Accounting and

Reporting by charities" (2015), and-the Financial Reporting standard "FRS l02"' This is

the first y"r,. inrt the accounis nave been prepared undei this standard The accounts

have been prepared on a going .onl"rn bffii= ,r there is sufficient demand for the

servicesprovidedbytheCorporationandsufficientresourcestoprovidethoseservices.
The Directors consider that there are no material uncertainties in this regard'

3.2 Public Benefit EntitY
TheCorporationi.apublicbenefitentityasdefinedunderFRSl02.

3'3 
iffiff is defined as the infrow of economic benefits arising from the activities undertaken

by the Corporation and is accounted for (gross) on-a receiiable basis lncome is included

in the Statement of Financial Actlviiies w"nen ti're Corporation has acquired a right to the

resource, when it is probable that it will be received, and when its monetary value can be

measured with sufficient reliability'

DonationsareaccountedforuponreceiptastheCorporationdoesnotreceivegiftsthatare
subject to performance related .onOitiont. Membership subscriptions are in the nature of

gifti and are therefore treated as donations'

Legacies are recognised when it is probable that the.,bequest will be received - once the

executors have confirmed: that th" i;firrt'on is entitled to the bequest; that probate has

been granted; that there are surricienr assets in the estate to pay the legacy; and once the

amount can be determined wllr sutiiclent reliability' When the amount cannot be measured

withsufficientreliability,thelegacyisaccountedforasacontingentasset.

lnterest Receivable from bank deposits and concessionary loans, and Dividends received

from the Grace Baptist Trust corporation common lnvestment Fund' are recognised on a

receivable basis at transacilon ,riJl-'rn.ore from Professional services is accounted for

upon service delivery at transaction value'

lncome arising from assets held in a particular. fund forms part of that fund with the

exception ot inior" arising trom rnJowni"nt r'nOt which is treated as Restricted lncome'

3.
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3.4

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

Expenditure
Expenditure is defined as the amount of resources that have been utilised on activities

undertaken by the Corporation and is accounted for gross (inclusive of VAT which cannot

be recovered) on an accruals basis. Expenditure is iicluded in the Statement of Financial

Activlties once there is a tegat or constructive obligation to make a payment to a third party'

when it is probabte that setilement will be requirel and the amount of the obligation can be

measured with sufficient reliability. Legal obligations arise under exchange transactions

that arc contractual whereas constructive obligations arise under non-exchange

transactions such as grants.

Unconditional Grants are accounted for as expenditure .when the offer of a specific

monetary amount ir tonreyeo to the recipient and it is probable that the payment will be

made. Grants tnat are suqect to conditions are accounted for as expenditure when the

conditions fall outside fl-re c'ontrol of the Corporation and it is more likely than not that the

payment will be maOe - in which case a liabiiity for the full funding obligation is recognised'

lf an offer of a grant has been made, but payment pe99-1es unlikely, albeit still possible'

ifre tunOing com-mitment is disclosed as a contingent liability'

Classification of lncome and Expenditure
Charitable Activities comprise the income and expenditure .that relates directly to the

charitable Activities of the corporation. These include the advice given to churches and

their members, the ,orlni=trrilon of the gift aid scheme, the provision of lrusteeship

services, the adminisiLtion of trust funds, 
"and certain professional services for which a

charge is made.

Governance costs are those costs associated with the general management of the

corporation as the trustees ensure compliance with constitutional and statutory

requirements. They incLuOe the costs of prepaiing for, and holding, trustees' meetings' the

cost of preparing ,t"lrioiyiccounts and annual ,6trrns, and the cost of the annual audit'

shared costs are those which contribute directly to more than one activity' such as staff

coits wnere members of staff are involved in more than one activity.

support costs are those costs which facilitate a number of activities and which do not

change directly as a resutt of the activity undertaken, such as office and premises costs'

Governance costs are treated as a category within support costs'

Allocation of Costs
Expenditurethatrelatesdirectlytooneactivitycategoryisallocatedinfulltothatactiv|ty.

Expenditure that relates to a number of activity categories is apportioned according to the

approximate amount of time spent on each activity' as follows:

Staff Benefits are allocated: charitable Activities 90% and Governance costs 10%'

Fixed office costs are allocated: support costs 90% and Governance costs '10%'

Thereafter, Shared Costs (which contribute to more than one Charitable Activity) and

Support Costs (whicn ,r" not attributable io on. singe Charitable Activity) are apportioned

according to the ,pp;;;"i; amount^of time spenion each activity, as follows: Advisory

services 7 O%, thedtin'o s.heme,1 0%, and professional services 200k.

3.5

3.6
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

3.7 CaPitalisation of Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are recognised when an asset is controlled by the corporation as a result of a

past transaction and"it is probable that future economic benefits will accrue from it'

Expenditure in excess of f500 on ir'," acquisition and installation of fixed assets is

capitalised at hiitorical cost. Fixed Assets received by way of gift are capitalised and

included in income at their fair value ltral is, the amount at which they could be exchanged

by willing parties in an arm's length transaction)'

3,8 DePreciation
Fixiures and Fittings, and Office Equipment
provision tor oeprJci"iion is made at rates calculated to write off the cost of the assets, less

any residual value, over their useful lives as follows:

Fixtures and Fittings
Office EquiPment

whilst it is considered that the assets of the corporation are unlikely to become impaired'

any asset that is found to have a n"i noo[ uulue higher than its net realisable value or its

value in use is written down to the higher of those values'

3.9 Gains and Losses on Tangible Fixed Assets held for the corporation's own use

AsurplusarisingonthedisposaloffixedassetsisincludedinthelncomeandExpenditure
Account and the statement of rinanciat h.fiuifl". as a realised gain on the disposal of fixed

assets.

lmpairment losses or deficits arising on the disposal.of fixed assets are included in the

lncome and Expenditure Account 
"n'o 

il'.r" Statement of Financial Activities as an additional

dePreciation charge.

Realisedgainsandlossesarisingonthedisposaloffixedassetsheldinaparticularfund
form Part of that fund'

TheCorporationdoesnothaveapolicyofrevaluingTangibleFixedAssets,

3.10 lnvestments
FixedAssetlnvestmentsrepresentinvestmentsintheGraceBaptistTrustCorporation
common lnvestment Fund and are'included in the Balance sheet at fair value based on

the price ot ,nitr. i6e surplus ot O"i"it aiiiing on revaluation is included in the Statement

of Financial Activities (under.Gains/Losses oi lnvestments"). The surplus or deficit arising

on disposal is-incruo"o in the rn.o*"-,no Expenditure Account and the statement of

FinancialActivities(under,.Gains/Lossesonlnvestments,,).

Realisedandunrealisedgainsandlossesoninvestmentassetsheldinaparticularfund
form Part of that fund'

3.11 
i;:";;ff:iTn contrinutes to emproyees, personar pension prans on a defined

contribution basis. Gontributions ,tJ iJ"oiln""o in th-e Statement of Financial Activities as

they becom" ;;y;bl";nJittocateo within staff Benefits (see note 3.6).

3.12 Financial lnstruments
TheCorporation,sFinancialAssetsandLiabilitiesqualifyasbasicfinancialinstrumentsand
as Such are initially recognised at cash, transaction, or settlement value' Subsequently'

current Assets and Liabilities are measured at cash or settlement value and Fixed Asset

lnvestments are measured at fair viue naseO on the price of units in the Grace Baptist

Trust Corporation Common lnvestment Fund'

Straight Line Method
Straight Line Method

10 Years
3 Years
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NOTES TO THE ACGOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

3.13 Debtors
Debtors are stated at their recoverable amount - that is, the amount that it is anticipated will

be received in respect of outstanJinj toans or other debts, or the amount that has been

paid in advance for goods and services'

Loanstochurches(seenote23)areconcessionaryloanswhicharemadetoassistwith
the acquisition, renovation, or mainienance of properties and are offered at rates of interest

that are significanly below trre marlei rate iusuatty "interest-free"). Loan repayments fall

due in either 20 or 40 equal instaiments ou"i , period of ten years and are guaranteed by

three individuals who act as guarantors. Loans are recognised at the amount initially lent'

with the 
"rriyrg "rount 

aOluiteO in subsequent years to reflect the repayments made.

3.14 Creditors
Creditorsarerecognisedwhenthecharityhasapresentlegalorconstructiveobligation
arising from a past event that will piobanty'resutt in ihe transfer of funds to a third party and

the amount due to setle the obrigution can be measured or estimated with sufficient

reliability. CreOitors are stated at t[eir settlement amount - that is' the amount that it is

anticipaied will be paid to setfle the corporation's liabilities.

3.15 Cash at Bank and in Hand
Cashatbankandinhandincludesdepositswithashortmaturityoftwelvemonthsorless
from the date of opening the deposit'

3.16 Critical Accounting Judgements
ln the application of tne r..ornting policies listed.above, the Directors are required to

make judger"nt= and assumptioni"about the carrying values of. asseis and liabilities that

are not readily apparent from other sources' Tl'rose assumptions' based on historical

experience ano other factors 
"oniiJereo 

to be relevant, are reviewed on an on-going basis'

ln the view of the Directors trere arl no uncertainties that are likely to result in a material

adjustment io the carrying ,rlunt. of those assets and liabilities in the forthcoming

financial Year.

3.17 Presentation CurrencY
The accounts are denominated in f sterling and rounded to the nearest pound'

4, ANALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTS

Governance Costs
Office ExPenses
PropertY ExPenses

Advisory
Services

t

13,750
12,020
7.869

33,639

Gift Aid
Scheme

f

1,964
1 ,717
1.124
4,805

Professional
Services

t

3,929
3,434
2.248
9.611

2016

f

19,643
17 ,171
11.241
48,055

2015

f

1 6,1 96
11,521
19,883
47,600

SupportCostsareapportionedoverthe,activitycategoriestowhichtheyrelateinproportiontothe
,piir-i.iG amount of ti'e spent on each activity' as follows:

70o/o

10%
20Yo
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

5. INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS

Donations and Legacies
Subscriptions and Donatlons
Legacies

Charitable Activities
Gift Aid Scheme
Professional Services

Investments
lnterest Receivable
lnvestment Income

Other lncoming Resources
Trust lncome

Total lncome and Endowments

6. EXPENDITURE

Charitable Activities
Advisory Services
Benevolent PaYments
Educational SuPPort
Gift Aid Scheme
Ministry SuPPort
Professional Services

Total ExPenditure

Unrestricted
Funds

Notes t

9,338

9,338

13,604
13,604

746
7.740
8,486

13
14
15
16
17
18

84,547

12,078

24,156

120.781

Designated Restricted Endowment
funds Funds Funds

ttt

Total Total
Funds Funds
2016 2015
tt

58,473 32,580
- 5.000

58,473 37,580

445,040 438,306
1 3 614 4,893

458.654 443.199

1,626 1,743
37129 36,606
38.755 38.349

123- 49.012

10
10

23,457
23,457

3,369,',t23

49,012

445,O40

880
5,932
6,812

123

8
I

'10

11

3,369,123

31.428 3,392.590 500,864 123 3,925,005 519,128

Unrestricted Designated Restricted Endowment
Funds FunOs Funds Funds

NotesfEft

Total Total
Funds Funds
2016 2015
ff

84,547 83,939
5,300 5,200

450,343 444,947
6,871 1,808

24,156 23,983

571.217 559,877

5,300

438,265
6,871
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(Continued)

7. SUBSCRIPTIONS AND DONATIONS

Churches
lndividuals
Subscriptions
Charities

GIFT AID SCHEME

Donations

2016
f

53,268
4,375

830

58,473

1 ,715
8,395
3.504

13,614

1,625

1

1.626

3,369,'123
3,369,123

2015
t

27 ,713
3,142

875
850

32,580

1,562

3,331
4,893

1,742

I
IJ!3

8.

o

445.040 438,306

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Services Rendered in connection with Trust Fund Administration

services Rendered in connection with the Sale of Redundant chapels

Other Services Rendered

10, INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Bank DePosits
Loans
Other

,11. INVESTMENT INCOME

Unlisted lnvestments - GBTC Common lnvestment Fund

12. TRUST INCOME

Proceeds from Sale of Redundant Chapels

37,129 36,606
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(Continued)

Direct SuPPort 2016 20'15

Gosts Grants Costs
fEttt

13, ADVISORY SERVICES

Providing Advice and

14, BENEVOLENT PAYMENTS

Grants are made to lndividuals

Benevolent Fund
Ministers'Aid Fund
The Pastors'fund

17, MINISTRY SUPPORT

Church Projects

ZOO - 200

6,871 1,808
6,871 1,808

15. EDUCATIONAL SUPPORT

Grants are made to lndividuals

16, GIFT AID SCHEME

Administration 7,273 - 4'805 12'078 11'991

6.871
6,871

18. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Services Rendered in Furtherance
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19. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Unrestricted Funds
General Fund

Designated Funds
Support Fund
Church Plantlng Fund

Restricted Funds
Gift Aid Donations
Halstead Fund
Lea Fund
Stoke Golding Fund
B A Warburton Memorial Fund

Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund

Endowment Funds
B A Warburton Memorial Fund

Ministers'Ald Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund
Loan Fund

TOTAL FUNDS

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Gontinued)

Balance
1.1.1 6

t

242,723

lncome Expenditure Transfers lnvestment Balance
Gains/(Losses) 31.12.16

31.428 120.781 97,633

(90,000)

(90,000)

(7,633)

rz.osst

12.625

38,259

38,259

263,628

952,526
3,369,123
4,321.649

13,229
6,021

100
188,624

965
1,984

74
47,900

258,897

6,497
12,342

1,829
't69,205

25,000
214,873

980,800 23,467
- 3.369.123

980,800 3,392,590

14,O87
7,083

145,965
762

1,477
216

46.512
216.102

6,1 65
11,599

1,736
160,579

25,000
205,079

445,040
1,000
4,909

42,659
203
507
58

6,488
500,864

123

438,265
2,062
4,809

200
5.100

450,436

571.217

332
620

93
8,626

9,671123

7.644104 eg2toos 60,555 5,059.047

The transfer from Restricted Funds to the Generar Fund represents the fee charged by the corporation for admrnistering

the Gift Aid scheme ,ni'iil.;;;;f* trom oesilna[o-i"lor i" ,re cenerar rind represents an adjustment offsetting

ii.l" J",tArf between General Fund income and expenditure'

Designated Funds wilr be utirised as the need arrses but church pranting projects are, by their nature, rong term projects

as it may take between fi.r" lnJ i"n years for a new church to become fully self-supporting'

The balance of Gift Aid Donations wilr be disbursed in accordance with the wishes of the donors in the forthcoming

flnanciar year and tne uaLnces in the Harsteri, L; unJ stox" Gordin-g funds witt be dispersed as the need arises to

supportthe ministry in tt",ose curres. Grants-wiff U"'nl"J" from the AXW'ib"dn Memorial Fund' the Ministers'Aid

Fund, the Benevolent r'nO, anO the Pastors' Fund as the need arises'

23



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

20. SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Thisisstatedaftercreditingandchargingthefollowingamounts:

After Crediting:
lnterest Receivable
lnvestment lncome

After Charging:
Audit Fee
DePreciation
Pension Fund Contributions
Rent

21. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost
Balance as at '1 JanuarY 2016

Additions
Disposals
Balance as at 31 December 2016

Accumulated DePreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2016

Charge for Year
Eliminated in respect of Disposals

Balance as at 3'1 December 2016

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2016

Net Book Value as at 31 December 2015

2016
f

1,626
37,129

6,650
'1,940

9,250
8,500

2015
t

1,743
36,606

6,500
3,328
9,067
8,500

Total

t
37,612

(21,723)
15,889

Fixtures
Fittings and
Equipment

t
37,612

(21,723)
15,889

35,672
1,940

(21.723),
15,889

'1,940

35,672
1,940

(21,723\
15,889

1,940
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(Continued)

22. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

Unlisted lnvestments:

At 1 JanuarY 2016
Additions
Disposals
lnvestment Gains/(Losses)
At 31 December 20'16

23, DEBTORS

Loans to Churches
Prepayments and Accrued lncome

Other Debtors

24. CREDITORS

Due within one Year
Taxation and Social Security Costs

Accruals and Deferred lncome

2015 2016 2015

Cost Valuation Valuation
fE€

2016
Cost

E

957,209
123

957,134
75

1,127 ,322 1,162,726
123 75

60,555 (35,479)

1 ,188,000 1 ,127 .322

The investments listed above are held primarily to provide an income and consist of units held

in the Grace Baptist Trust corporation common lnvestment Fund' by the following funds:

General Fund 156,503 Units 197'163

Support f unO 474,288 Units 591'509

AIWarOurton Fund 4j00 Units 4'808

wfinist"tt' Aid Fund 7,800 Units 10'096

benevolent Fund '1,156 Units 1'354

ih" Fr.tot.' Fund '106,933 Units 152'4QZ
957.332

957,332 957,209

Due after Due within
one year one year

53,000

53,000

1g7 ,163 247,641 235,016

591,509 750,486 712,227

+,eoa 6,497 6,165
g,gzg 12,342 11'599

1,354 1,829 1'736

152.402 169,205 160,579

s5? ,209 i , t aa.ooo 1,127 ,322

2016 2015
et

11,OOO 64,000 46,750

r,geg 1,933 1,933

3,389,512 3,389,512 j4+
3,402.445 3,455'445 57 '374

Loans to churches are concessionary loans which are made to assist with the acquisition'

renovation, o*aintenance of pro[erties anJ "" 
offered at rates of interest that are

significantly below tnJmurf.lt rate ljsualty "interest-free")' Loan repayments fall due in either

20 or AOequal instatrir"nG ou"1. a period of t"n y""' 
"nd 

a'e guaranieed by three individuals

who act as guarantors'

other Debtors include the sum of f3,369,123 repre-senting the net sales proceeds of the

former chapel anO manse in Brighton' received on 3'd February 2017 '

2016
f

1,821
6,724
8,545

2015
f

1,875
7,268
9.143
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(Continued)

25. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Tangible Current
Fixed Assets lnvestments Assets

tt€

Current Net
Liabilities Assets

ft

Unrestricted Funds
General Fund

Designated Funds
Support Fund
Church Planting Fund

Restricted Funds
Gift Aid Donations
Halstead Fund
Lea Fund
Stoke Golding Fund
B A Warburton Memorial Fund

Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund

Endowment Funds
B A Warburton Memorial Fund

Ministers'Aid Fund
Benevolent Fund
The Pastors' Fund
Loan Fund

TOTAL FUNDS 1 ,188.000 3,879,592 (8,545) 5,059,047

750,486

247.641

750,486

6,497
12,342
1,829

169,205

189,873

24.532

202,040
3,369,123
3,571,163

13,229
6,021

'100

188,624
965

1,984
74

47.900
258.897

(8.545) 263.628

952,526
3.369,1 23
4,321.649

13,229
6,021

100
188,624

965
1,984

74
47,900

258,897

6,497
12,342
1,829

169,205
25,000

214.873
25,00;
25,000

26, DETAILS OF FUNDS

26.1 General Funds
GeneralFundsareexpendableatthediscretionofthedirectorsinfurtheranceofthe
objects ot tn"-Corporriion. lt is the desire of the directors that the costs of running the

corporation *itt o"'met out ot r"rn"iihip subscriptions, voluntary donations, professional

servicesandinvestmentincomearisingfromGeneralFundreserves.

26.2 Designated Funds
DesignateJ Funds comprise unrestricted funds received by the corporation following the

disposal oi redundant ihapels. fn" Support Fund has been set aside by the directors in

order to provide support to churches thai are undertaking significant maintenance projects

and are utilised as the need arises within individual local chulches. ln addition a transfer is

made to the General Fund, ,. nl"".t"ry' Church .planting 
projects are' by their nature'

long term projects as it may tafe Letween 1ve and ten yeais for a new church to become

fully self-supporting. The funds will be utilised as opportunities arise and so' for the reasons

given, it is not possible to state *r,* it it anticipated that expenditure will be incurred'

26



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEGEMBER 2016

(Continued)

26- DETAILS OF FUNDS (Continued)

26.3 Restricted Funds
Restricted Funds consist of income arising from the Corporation's Endowment Funds, (see

26.4), which is available for distribution, Ionations which have been given to support the

mintstry of specific churches, and donations given under the corporation's Gift Aid

Scheme. These donations are distributed to localthurches, missionary societies, and other

charitable causes that further the aims of the Corporation in accordance with the

instructions of the donors.

26.4 Endowment Funds

The Pastors' Fund
The pastors, Fund was established in 2010 following the closure of the Strict Baptist Trust and

the strict Baptist pension Fund underthe provisions-of section 74 of lhe Charities Act 1993' The

permanent endowment of those charities has now become the permanent endowment of the

corporation. rncome arising from the Pastors' Fund Endowment is included in Restricted Funds

and is used to pay giants tJstrlct Baptist pastors, whether currently serving or retired.

B A Warburton Memorial Fund
The B AWarburton Memorial Fund was establlshed in 1963. Desiring to encourage the training

of men among strict Baptist churches who planned to enter the Ministry, the members of the

Tabernacle Baptist church, Brighton collected funds in memory of their late pastor, Benjamin A

Warburton. The objects of the Trust are:

. To render assistance to men who, following a definite and clear call by the Holy Spirit to the

ministry of the Gospel, seek to study and apply all diligence to the duty set before them'

. To keep the fund separate and distinct from all other corporation funds'

r To seek further donations in order to build up the capital, and to invest the same'

. To distribute the dividends in accordance with the purposes of the fund'

Ministers'Aid Fund
The Ministers'Aid Fund was established in 1917 to provide temporary or permanent financial

assistance to ministers connected *itn tn" strict and Particular Baptist denomination and the

incomeisavailablefordistribution.Underthetermsofthetrust:
...Ministers,,aredefinedaspastorsorexpastorsofsuchchurchesorpersonswhohavefora

period of three years or upwarOs 1."guf"ify engaged in preaching the Gospel in churches of

ihe denomination whether continuing to do so or not'

r The frustees (Grace Baptist Trust-Corporation) shall and will stand possessed of the sum

representing the Fund, and any further sums of ,oney that may be added to it' to be held

uPon the trusts declared'
r All securities and income belonging to the fund are to be kept separate from other securities

and moneY. ,:-r-:, ..r^r
o SOohof additions to the fund are to be added to capital, and 50% distributed as income.

Benevolent Fund
TheBenevolentFundwasestablishedinlg23torthetemporaryorpermanentbenefltofneedy
persons .onn".t"d with the Strict and Particular Baptist denomination whether such persons are

pastors, itinerani ministers, members or-iejutar attendees at any church in the denomination or

thechildrenofanysuchpersons'Underthetermsofthetrust:
r The rrustees (Grace Baptist Trust Corporation) shall and will stand possessed of the sum

representing the Fund, and any further sums oi money that may be added to it, to be held

uPon the trusts declared'
r All securities and income belonging to the fund are to be kept separate from other securities

and moneY.
.SOo/oofadditionstothefundaretobeaddedtocapital,and50%distributedasincome'
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26. DETAILS OF FUNDS (Continued)

26.4 Endowment Funds (Continued)

Loan Fund
The Loan Fund was established by a Trust Deed

trust:
. The Trustees (Grace Baptist Trust corporation) are to.stand possessed of one Thousand

pounds representinj the'fund, and anyfurther sums of money that may at any time come

into their hands as additions to the fund'

. The funds are to be advanced by way of loan to the Trustees or members of any strict and

particular Baptist church in the Unite-d Kingoom for.the purpose of acquiring or constructing

land or buildings ioi u=" in connection with 
-strict 

and Particular Baptist Churches'

.Anysumsnotimmediatelyrequiredaretobeplacedondepositorinvestedinsuch
invLstments as Trustees are authorlsed to invest in by law.

. The income arising from any such investment is to be used for the General Purposes of the

CorPoration.
r All loans are to be lnterest-free and repaid over a period of not more than ten years'

dated 16 April 1912. Under the terms of the

27. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

Total PaYroll Costs comPrised:

Wages and Salaries
Employers'NlC
Other Benefits
Other Pension Costs

Key Management Personnel
Other Staff

2016
E

62,324
3,310
5,922
9,250

80.806

59,349
21,457
80,806

2015
f

61 ,1 03
4,901
5,276
9,067

80,347

58,202
22.145
80,347

..KeyManagementPersonnel,,isatermdefiningthose-individualswhohaveauthorityand
responsibirity for pranning, directing ,no ioni.rrn[ *,e activities of the corporation' whilst this

definition includes the Director., no *".oer of thJ Board received any remuneration during the

year (2015: f0).

Noemployeereceivedemolumentsinexcessoff60,000ineitheryear.

The average number of employees in the year was 2 (2015"2)

The corporation contributed to two employee's Personal Pension Plans during the year (2015:2)'

There were no outstanding contributions at the year end'

28, BOARD OF DIRECTORS
NomembersoftheBoardreceivedanyremunerationorotherbenefitsduringtheyear(2015:!0).
seven members ctaimeo travelling "'*p"rr". 

t"ialling L1,735 (2015'. Eight members claimed

f2,045).
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE ACGOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
The following payments will fall due in the year to 31.12-2017 under non-cancellable

leases:

Expiring within 1 Year

Expiring within 2 - 5 Years

30. RELATED PA,RTY TRANSACTIONS

30.1 Donations Received from Related Parties
Board of Directors
KeY Management Personnel

2016
t

6,148

70
535

2016
€

675
70

745

operating

2015
t

8,500

2015
t
465

30.2 Other Related Party Transactions
Other than as stated in note 30.1 , there were no related party transactions during the year'
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 3{ DECEMBER 2016

CONSTITUTION
The Common lnvestment Fund was established by

27th August 1987.

The Fund invests capital on behalf of the Corporation
the Corporatlon is a Trustee. The Directors of the

lnvestment Fund.

a Scheme of the Charity Commission dated

and other Churches and Trust Funds of which
Corporation act as Trustees of the Common

MANAGEMENT
The Trustees have delegated the day-to-day management and administration of the fund to Fund

Managers, Quilter Cheviot Limited.

STRUCTURE
The fund operates as a Unit Trust. The total fund is divided into units which are created or cancelled

on the receipt of new funds or the redemption of holdrlg! At 31 December 2016 units totalled

3,655,701 (20t5.3,531,999)and were valued a|f1.58234221 per unit (2015: t1.50'167511), based on

the portfolio of investments.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY
Approximately g0% of the total units are held by permanently endowed trust funds that demand a high

level of income in the absence of any reaiisiic opportunities for the utilisation of their capital.

Consequengy, the investment strategy oi tt",e fund is to achieve a robust income yield coupled with

long-teim cjpital growth as an inflationary hedge. lnvestment performance is_governed by the

Truitees' acceptance of a cautious to moderate level of risk and their adoption of an ethical stance

that prevents investment in sectors covering alcohol, gambling, pornography, tobacco and credit

institutions that apply extortionate and exorbitant lending principles'

The Trustees and Fund Managers have agreed a target asset allocation of fixed interest stocks, gilts

,nd 
"orporrte 

bonds (55%), Jquities and structured investments (35%), and property (10%) that is

designed to achieve ttrese onlectives. ln the absence of a suitable standard benchmark that equates

to th! requirements of the coiporation, the Trustees and Fund Managers have formulated a specialist

benchmark against which the performance of the fund is to be monitored. The income yield achieved

on the Corpoiation's portfolio of investments was 3.3% against a target of 3.5%, and the total return

achieved was 9.7% against the benchmarkof 126%'

RESPONSIBILITY
The Trustees are responsible for the approval of the lnvestment Strategy' which is agreed with the

Fund Manager. The i'iustees meet periodically to review the management of the funds and to confirm

any policies required.
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TRUSTEES
The Trustees of the Common lnvestment Fund are required by the Scheme of the Charity Commission

dated 27th August'1987, made under the Charities Act 1960, to prepare financial statements in

accordance wiin tfre Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008. ln preparing the financial

statements the Trustees are required to:

. Select suitable accounting policies that are appropriate for the Fund and then apply them

consistentlY.
. Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent'

. Follow generally accepted accounting principles and applicable accounting standards,

subject to any material departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

. Follow the disclosure requirements of the Statement of Recommended Practice for Financial

Statements of Authorised Funds (2014).

. prepare the financial statements on the basis that the Fund will continue in operation unless

it is inappropriate to presume this.

The Trustees are required to manage the Fund in accordance with the Scheme, maintain accounting

records and take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of the Trustees

@/</* //rt#
K C WWiltshire (..-

D W J Skull
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INDEPENDENTAUDIToR'SREPoRTToTHETRUSTEESoF
GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

We have audited the financial statements of Grace Baptist Trust Corporation Commo-n lnvestment Fund

for the year ended 3l,tDecember 2016 on pages 34 io a0. T.he financial reporting framework that has

been applied in their preparation is applicable"law and United Kingdom Accounting standards (United

Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)'

This report is made solely to the Trustees, as a body, in accordance with Section 144 of the Charities Act

2011. our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trustees those matters we are

required to state to them in a Report of the Auditors and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent

peimitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trustees as a

boOy, for oui audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor
As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 32, the trustees are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view'

We have been appointed as auditor under section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in

accordance with regulations made under section 154 of that Act' our responsibility is to audit and

express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and lnternational

Standards on auditing (Uk and lreland). Those standards require us to comply with Auditing Practices

Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors'

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves ontaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

sufficient to give reasonablJ assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are

appropriate to the charitable company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and

adequately disclosed, the reasonableneis of significant accounting estimates made by the trustees; and

the overall presentaiion of the financial statef,rents. ln addition, we read all the financial and non-

financial information in the report of the directors to identify material inconsistencies with the audited

financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially- incorrect based on, or

materially inconsistenl *iil1, t" xnowteoge acquired by us in the course of performing our audit lf we

become aware of any apparent materiarhisstatementi or inconsistencies we consider the implications

for our report.

Opinion on financial statement
ln our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31't December 2016 and its

i-ncoming ,"rorr.", and application of resources, for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011'

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

we have nothing to i"port in iespect of the following matters where the charities Act 2011 requires us to

report to You if, in our oPinion:
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

. sufficient accounting records have not been kept' or

. we have not received allthe information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. the information given in the Trustees Report is inconsistent in any material respect with the

financial statements

-'l
Bourne House
Queen Street
Gomshall
Surrey
GUs gLY

JJ



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2016
Notes

Net Gains/(Losses) on
lnvestments during the Year

Gross lncome

Expenses

Net lncome

Total Return for the Year

Distributions

2

J

4

178,788

'1,051

207,433

15,079

290,313

177,737

468,050

179,749

2016
f

5,303,915

192,354

288,301

1 82,31 I

906

49,851

48,399

2015

( 1 76,1 e6)

181,413

5,21?

172,018

(166,801)

2015
€

5,469,264

1,452

(166,801)

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Unit Holders'
Funds from lnvestment Activities

Notes

Net Assets as at 1 JanuarY 2016

Movement due to the Creation
and Cancellation of Units

Amounts Received on Creation of Units

Amounts Paid on Cancellation of Units

Net lncrease/(Decrease) ln Unit Holders'
Funds from lnvestment Activities

288,301

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNIT HOLDERS'FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Net Assets as at 31 December 2016

34

5.784,570 5,303,915



Portfolio of lnvestments

Current Assets
Debtors
Cash at Bank and in COIF

Current Liabilities
Creditors

Net Current Assets

Net Assets

Unit Holders' Funds

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

BALANGE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Notes
2016

f

5,735,386

50,041
148

50,1 89

(1,005)

49,184

5.784.570

5.784,570

B

I

52,002
96

52,098

(e02)

2015
€

5,252,719

5'1 ,196

5,303,915

5,303,915

The Financial Statements on pages 34-40 were approved by the Trustees on 6 March 2017.

K C WWiltshire
<:

D W J Skull
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1, ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 AccountingConventions
These financial statements have been prepared under the historic cost convention, as

modified by the revaluation of investments, and are in accordance with the Charities
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the Statement of Recommended Practice
for Financial Statements of Authorised Funds (2014).

1.2 Dividends and Other lncome
Dividends on ordinary stocks are credited to income when receivable. lnterest on

Government Stocks, Convertible Loan Stocks, and Bank Deposits is accrued on a daily
basis.

1.3 DistributionPolicY
The Fund distributes, in full, the income that is accumulated between distribution dates.

1.4 lnvestmentValuation
lnvestments are valued at the mid-market valuation at the close of business on the

accounting date.

1.5 Taxation
The Fund is exempt from UK lncome and Capital Gains Tax due to its charitable status.

1.6 Fund Management ExPenses
Fund Management Expenses are charged against the Capital Value of the Fund.

2, NET GAINS ON INVESTMENTS
The Net Gains/(Losses) on lnvestments during the year comprise:

Proceeds from sale of investments sold during the year

Original cost of investments sold during the year

Gains/(Losses) realised on investments sold during the year

Net Losses/(Gains) thereon already recognised in previous years

Net unrealised appreciation for the year

Fund Management ExPenses
Net Gains/(Losses) on lnvestments

3. GROSS INCOME

UK Equities
UK Fixed lnterest
Overseas Equities
Overseas Fixed lnterest
lnterest on DePosits

2016
t

672,694
660,117

12,577
(13,031)

(454)
327.907
327,453

37.140
290,313

2016
E

'105,373

47,585
8,659

16,358
813

178.788

2015
f

1,827,719
1,560,524

267,195
(294,561)
(27,366)

(114.431\
(141,7e7)

34,399
(1 76,1 96)

20'15
t

95,891
56,429

7,550
22,015

434
182.319
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5. DISTRIBUTIONS
Distributions take account of income received on the creation of units and income deducted on
the cancellation of units.

4, EXPENSES

Audit Fee
Bank Charges

20 May 2016
20 November 2016

6. DEBTORS

Amounts due from Fund Managers
Accrued lncome

7. CASH AT BANK AND IN COIF

Cash at Bank (lncome Funds)

8. CREDITORS

Accruals

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

Pence per Unit

2.2504948
2.6950756

2016
t

1,000
51

1,051

2016
f

81,271
98,478

17s_l4e

2016
€

49,804
237

50,041

2016
E

148

2015
t
900

6
906

2015
€

77,153
94,86p

172.01p

2015
t

51,891
11.1

52,0q2

2015
t

96

2015
t
902

2016
I

1.,095
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

9. INCOME RESERVE
The income reserve represents the income received by the Fund since the last distribution date

2016
e

51 ,1 96
(2,012)
49,184

2015
e

41,802
9,394

51 ,1 96

lncome Reserve as at 1 January 2016
Transfer to/(from) lncome Reserve
lncome Reserve as at 31 December 2016

10. TRUSTEES
The Trustees received no remuneration or expenses.

PURCHASES

135,000
3,800

1 1,800
40,000
52,000
31,000

680

SALES

4,000
800

160,000
60,000
56,719
4,000

17,500

COST

127,272
69,597

149,671
74,064
33,070
69,1 1 0
45,1 56

567,940

PROCEEDS

59,779
106,755
155,010
45,059
67,173
53,400
44,230

531,406

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE PORTFOLIO

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Royal London Utm UK Government Bond Z
lshares li lndex-Linked Gilts Ucits Etf
lshares li Core UK Gilts Ucits Etf
Allianz Global lnvestors UK Gilt Yield
Lloyds Banking Group
Vodafone Group
Reckltt Benckiser Group

Ishares li lndex-Linked Gilts Ucit
lshares lii UK Gilts Ucits Etf
AXA lnvestment Managers US Short Duration High Yield
Debenhams
Aberdeen I nvestment Property Trust
Pimco Global lnvestment Grade Credit Hgd lnstl
lndivior
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

Market Value
as at 3{.12.16

E

% of total
Portfolio

UNITED KINGDOM

UK FIXED INTEREST

Government Stock
e150,000 Treasury 4.75% Stock 2020
f135,000 Treasury 3.75% Gil|2020
t170,000 Treasury 4% Gtl2022

Other
290,000
860,000
44,200

9,800

Allianz Global lnvestors UK Gilt Yield
Royal London Utm UK Gov Bond
lshares li Core UK Gilts Ucits Etf
lshares li l/L Gilts Ucits Etf

173,949
153,712
202,146

531,483
807,798
582,998
175,077

81,536
129,470
37,902
85,605
99,968
39,888
62,120
53,843
85,644
22,345
78,828
87,552
71,104
35,000
71,610
21,320
62,712
38,770
67,545
75,438
40,924
29,719
29,425
18,788
17,760
61,954
46,825
32,505
54,767

529,807

2,097,356 36

UK EQUITIES
16,000 BP
5,500 Royal Dutch Shell
1,200 Rio Tinto
2,600 Unilever
6,400 Glaxosmithkline

'16,000 Sainsbury
4,000 Scottish and Southern EnergY

23,000 Centrica
9,000 National Grid

10,000 Barclays
12,OOO HSBC
18,000 Aviva
3,200 Severn Trent

10,000 Marks & Spencer GrouP
4,400 Prudential
2,000 Land Securities Group
4,800 BHP Billiton
9,500 Smith (DS)
4,500 Compass GrouP
1,700 Astrazeneca
2,600 Experian
8,100 BT GrouP
8,400 Kingfisher
2,500 lnmarsat
1,000 Persimmon

31,000 Vodafone
680 Reckitt Benckiser GrouP

52,000 Lloyds
8,700 British Land ComPanY

39

1,640,867 28



GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

COMMON INVESTMENT FUND

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

(Continued)

UNITED KINGDOM (Continued)

CASH BALANCES
Citi Quilter lnvestment Managers
COIF Charities DePosit Fund

EUROPE

EQUITIES
80,000 BlackRock Continental European lncome

USA

EQUITIES
11,OOO KBI Dividend Plus North American Equity A lnc

FAR EAST

EQUITIES
8,000 Aberdeen Fund Managers Asia Pacific

GLOBAL

PROPERTY FUNDS
46,000 Henderson lnvestment Property

250,000 Charities ProPertY Fund

140,000 Aberdeen Fund Managers Property

EQUITIES
99,912 J P Morgan Asset Management Emerging Markets

FIXED INTEREST
15,000 Pimco Global lnvestment Grade Credit Hgd lnstl

aO,OOO AXA lnvestment Managers Short Duration High Yield

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS

Market Value
as at 31 .12.16

f

% of total
Portfolio

51,670
271,023

1 13,840

165,737

19,129

49,744
297,575
160,454

55,082

204,750
78,352

322,693
4,590,723

6
79

113,840

165,737

19,129

507,773

55,082

283,102

5,735,386

49,184

99

1

40

5,784.570 100
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

TRUST FUND RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Receipts

Various Trusts

Payments

Various Trusts

Surplus/(Deficit) of Receipts over Payments

Balances brought forward as at 1 January 2016

Balances carried forward as at 31 December 2016

lnvestments held on behalf of various trusts

lnterest in Grace Baptist Trust Corporation Common lnvestment Fund

2016
t

433,052

354,037

79,015

610,215

2015
t

180,297

160,474

19,823

590,392

689,230 610,215

The Corporation acts as a Trustee for the charitable trusts that are listed on pages 42 and 43 and the

Receipts and Payments Account above is a consolidated summary of the accounts of these trusts.

The accounts inciude both Capital and Revenue amounts. Separate accounts are maintained for each

of the trusts and returns are made to the Charity Commission where appropriate. The Receipts and
payments Account and the investments held on behalf of the Trusts (see below) are kept separate

from those of the Corporation and are not included in the accounts set out on pages 11 lo 29.

t4,596,570

Further information about churches that we have been able to assist with support from the Trust

Funds we administer is given on our website and paper copies are available, on request
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

TRUST FUNDS

The following Chapel Trusts are administered by Order of the Charity Commission or by the terms of
Trust Deeds. Churches qualified to benefit under the terms of the Trusts should communicate with the
Chief Executive.

Dividends re the: -

ALTON TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Hampshire, and adjoining counties of West
and East Sussex, Surrey and Wiltshire.

AMERSHAM TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels in Buckinghamshire.

BLACKBURN TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Lancashire.

BURNLEY TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels within a radius of 40 miles from Burnley.

COBHAM TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels within a radius of 12 miles of Cobham.

CROYDON TRUST towards the upkeep, extension or improvement of the buildings of Strict and
Particu lar Baptist Churches.

EDENBRIDGE TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Kent, Surrey, East and West Sussex

EPPING TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Essex within a radius of 25 miles of
Epping.

FENLAND CHURCHES TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Cambridgeshire, Norfolk
and Lincolnshire.

FLECKNEY TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels with a preference for those in
Leicestershire.

GLOUCESTERSHIRE COMBINED CHARITIES to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in the County
of Gloucestershire and adjoining counties.

HORLEY (LEE STREET) TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Surrey, Hampshire, West
and East Sussex.

HORNSEY RISE TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels in Middlesex and London.

IVINGHOE TRUST to Particular Baptist Chapels in the Counties of Bedfordshire, Buckinghamshire,
Hertfordshire and Northamptonshire.

LEE CLUMP TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels within 10 miles of the former Providence Baptist
Chapelat Lee ClumP.

MAIDSTONE (KING STREET) TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels in the County of Kent.

MATDSTONE (MOTE ROAD) TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels within 30 miles of Maidstone.

MARDEN TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Kent.

RUSHDEN TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels within 30 miles of Rushden.

SLEAFORD TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Lincolnshire, and adjoining Counties of
Cam bridgesh i re, Leicestersh ire and Nottin g hamsh ire.

SOUTHBOROUGH TRUST to Strict Baptist Chapels in Kent.

TONBRIDGE TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in Kent.
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

TRUST FUNDS

(Continued)

Upp;NGHAM TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels at Uppingham, Leicestershire and the

surrounding area.

WADDESDON HILL TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in the counties of

Buckin ghamsh ire, Bedfordshi re and Hertfordsh ire.

WARBLETON TRUST to Particular Baptist Chapels with a preference for those in East Sussex.

WARRTNGTON TRUST to Strict and Particular Baptist Chapels in the counties of Cheshire,

Merseyside, Greater Manchester, Lancashire, Cumbria and West Yorkshire.

WILTSHIRE TRUST to any Strict and Particular Baptist Chapel in the County of Wiltshire.

WTSBECH MANSE TRUST for the benefit of chapels of the Strict Baptist denomination.

WRIGHT MEMORIAL to Particular Baptist churches in Lancashire and West Yorkshire.

Trust Funds relating to the following places or persons are administered as directed by the Charity

Commission, or by the terms of trust deeds or wills: Balham, Bedworth Manse, Bermondsey Manse'

Brentford, Brightoh Manse, Broadstairs, Brockham, Brockley, Brockley Graveyard,_Devizes, Great

Ellingham, Gr[ndisburgh Manse, Haworth - Hartley Trust, Haworth Manse, lpswich Manse, Marden,

Marg-ate, Meopham MJnse, Norris Legacy, Otley, Portsmouth JVIanse, Preston Settlement, Rattlesden

Man"se, 
'St. 

Atbanr, Salhouse, Slaithwaite, Snodland, Stoke Golding, Thornhill Manse, Two Waters,

Wattisham - Chaplin Legacy, Wellingborough Manse, Wetherden Manse, Wimbledon.
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1.

GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

BASIS OF FAITH

The verbal inspiration of the Holy Scriptures of the Old and New Testaments and that they are

the sole, supreme, and all-sufficient authority in every matter of Christian faith and practice.

One living and only true God, subsisting in the Trinity of Three co-equal and co-eternal
persons - the Father, the Son, and the Holy Spirit, all infinite without beginning; the Father

neither begotten nor proceeding; the Son eternally begotten of the Father; the Holy Spirit

eternally proceeding from the Father and the Son.

The Deity, eternal Sonship, and spotless humanity of the Lord Jesus Christ; His virgin birth,

crucifixioh, death, and burial; His physical resurrection, and ascension into heaven.

The personal, eternal, and unconditional election of the Church in Christ unto everlasting

salvation.

The Fall of mankind in Adam their federal head whose transgression is imputed to them, and

from whom they derive a corrupt nature, thereby rendering them both unable and unwtlling to

meet the claims of God's righteous and holy law.

That though att men are rendered spiritually impotent by the Fall, they are none the less

accountable to God for their sins, and they shall answer for the same in the day of judgement

except they be granted repentance unto eternal life.

The special, particular, and eternal redemption from all sin,-and the penal consequence

thereoi, of ail God's elect, through the substitutionary sacrifice of the Lord Jesus Christ.

The eternal and everlasting justification through faith of the elect and redeemed Church, by

the blood and imputed rightbousness of Christ, irrespective of any moral or spiritual works

done by them either before or after regeneration.

The effectual calling of all the redeemed by the invincible power and grace of the Holy Spirit,

according to the counsel of God's will, involving their regeneration and sanctification by the

direct agincy of the Holy Spirit, through which the saints grow in grace perfecting holiness in

the fear of the Lord.

The grace of faith whereby the elect are enabled to believe to the saving of their souls is the

gitt oi OoO, and the work of the Holy Spirit in their hearts, Who convinces them of sin, works in

ihem repentance unto life, and enables them to look to, receive, and rest upon the Lord Jesus

Christ alone for salvation

The final perseverance in the ways of God of all those who have been chosen by the Father,

redeemed by the Son, and regenerated by the Holy Spirit, so that they shall never perish' but

have eternal life.

The second coming of the Lord Jesus Christ, the resurrection of the dead, both of the just and

the unjust, when t[e wicked will go away into everlasting punishment and the righteous into

life eternal.

The duty and prlvilege of all true believers to profess their repentance towards God and faith

in the Ltrd Jesus Cirist, by being baptized, that is, immersed in water, in the name of the

Father, and of the son,'"no of t-he Holy spirit, prior to becoming members of a christian

Church or partaking of the Lord's Supper'

The preaching of the Gospel to every creature as a divine command and solemn duty'

The necessity of a believer's life being consistent with the profession he makes.

The congregational order of the Churches'

7.

J.

5.

8.

9.

10.

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

RULES

(EXTRACTED FROM THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION)

Every member of the Corporation shall be a member of one of the following classes, namely: -

(a) Ordinary Members. That is to say, members of a Particular Baptist Church practising strict

communion, who subscribe to the said- Doctrinal Basis and who pay to the Corporation an annual

subscrlption to be fixed from time to time by the Council'

(b) Delegate Members. That is to say, members being delegates nominated by a Particular

bjptist Ciurch practising strict communion which adheres to the said Doctrinal Basis and makes

an annual donation to tlie Corporation of not less than five pounds or of such other amounts as

shall be fixed from time to time by the Council.

PROVIDED THAT Churches consisting of less than ten members shall be entltled to nominate

one Delegate Member and that Churcies consisting of ten or more members shall be entitled

to nominate two Delegate Members, that Churches consisting of twenty or more members

shall be entiiled to noriinate three Delegate Members and that Churches consisting of forty or

more members shall be entitled to nominate four Delegates. The nomination of a person as a

Delegate Member shall be in writing, signed b_y the Secretary of the Church, and the same

shall be delivered to the Secretary oi tne iorporation, and upon such nomination and

notification in writing of his/her consent to act as such Delegate Member the person

nominated shall, sublect to the approval of the Council, be duly entered_in the Register of

Members. Each DelLgate Member shall subscribe to the said Doctrinal Basis and shall be

entiled to one vote oniy, notwithstanding that he/she may also be an Ordinary Member of the

Corporation.

(c) Associate Members. That is to say, persons who satisfy the Councit that they are in sympathy

with the said Doctrinal Basis and wit-h the objects of the Corporation. Each Associate Member

shall pay the Corporation an annual subscription of an amount to be fixed from time to time by the

council.- Associate membership does not carry the right to vote.

The corporation shall hold a General Meeting in every calendar year as its Annual General

ttlt""ting at such time and place as may be determined by the council.

The affairs of the corporation shall be managed by a council of Management'

The members of the Council shall be elected at each Annual General Meeting from among the

ordinary Members and the Delegate Members of the corporation, and every church entitled to

nominate a Delegate Member shall be entitled to nominate in writing a male member to be

in.ruo"o In the tisiof persons to be submitted to the meeting for election'

lmmediately upon election, the council shall proceed to elect from amongst their number a

Chairman, a Deputy Chairman, and a Treasurer'

At the Annual General Meeting in every year the Council shall lay before the Corporation a proper

income and expenditure accolnt for the period since the last preceding account (or in the case of

the first account since the incorporation of the corporation) made up to a date not more than four

months before tr"n ,""tlng, together with a proper balance sheet made up as at the same date'
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

WAYS WE CAN HELP YOU

We exist to serve the churches and we are able to do this in a number of ways, as outlined below. lf
you feel that we can help in any of the ways listed please contact the Chief Executive.

Grants and Loans
When redundant chapels are sold the money is invested and the investment income is available to
make grants to other churches whose ministries are expanding and who need to redevelop their
buildings. ln some cases, the capital sum may be lent to churches, either as an interest-free loan or as
an interest-bearing loan at a competitive rate of interest.

Professional Advice
The office staff are available to offer advice on many dayto-day matters associated with the
administrative side of running a church. ln addition, the Board of Directors comprise a group of men
who are actively involved in the work and who are able to give preliminary guidance as to how a
church should proceed in the light of a particular difficulty that may arise. We have expertise in various
professional fields including accountancy, architecture, health and safety issues, investments, law,
and surveying.

Trusteeship
The Corporation has been recognised as a Baptist Trust Corporation within the meaning of the Baptist
and CongregationalTrusts Act, 1951 and may be appointed a trustee of any Particular Baptist Church
practising strict communion. Churches appointing the Corporation as a trustee will not in future be
faced with the necessity of finding a lot of other trustees (sometimes as many as twelve or thirteen),
even if the trust deed requires it. The Corporation is willing to act as trustee alongside local people or
as Sole Trustee. ln this way churches will no longer be faced with difficulties arising from the fact that
widely scattered trustees are rarely able to meet, nor will problems arise if some of the trustees
change their doctrinal position or refuse to act in a matter of importance. Furthermore, the difficulties
that can arise when the last of the trustees has died or cannot be traced will not occur.

We have a programme for assisting churches of which the Corporation is a trustee by commissioning
a survey of their premises and working with them to implement a structured programme of essential
maintenance. ln addition advice concerning church problems is often sought, but it should be made
clear that the willingness of the Corporation to give advice is by no means limited to those churches of
which it is a trustee. Any church may approach the Corporation knowing that its appeal will receive a

sympathetic consideration.

Endowment Funds
We administer a number of endowment funds such as our Loan Fund, Ministers' Aid Fund, Benevolent

Fund, the Pastors' Fund, and the B A Warburton Fund (which under the terms of the trust is available
to assist men who, being members of our churches, are in training for the Ministry). We are always
willing to accept trusteeship of other similar funds.

Tax-efficient Giving
We are able to help churches maximise their resources through our Gift Aid scheme, which is

particularly helpful to churches that may not have in-house expertise or to individuals who wish to give

anonymously. ln addltion, one gift to us can be distributed to various causes on behalf of the donor.
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GRACE BAPTIST TRUST CORPORATION

WAYS YOU CAN HELP US

By giving
We existlo serve the churches and we make no charge for doing so (apart from specific services such

as the Gift Aid scheme). However, serving others is a costly business; office rent has to be paid; the

audit fee has to be paid; so do our staffl These costs are met out of the generous giving of the Lord's

people and from our investment income, (although that is income that would otherwise be given to

chuiches). You can help us by making personal donations to defray these expenses and by

encouraging your church to do so as well.

By becoming a personal member
Ann ual subscriptions are:
Full Membership - t10.00 per annum. Associate Membership - t5.00 per annum.
personal membership is a more committed way of supporting us in our ministry, but in addition it

enables you to attend our Annual General Meeting and have a say in the way the Corporation is run.

The membership form makes it clear what type of membership is applicable in your case. Be warned!

lf ever the Corporation were to close down with debts, personal members would be required to

contribute f5 towards repaying them. However, we trust that by acting as good stewards of all that the

Lord has entrusted to us, it will never happen.

By encouraging your church to become a subscribing church
C-hurches tfrat mjke a gift to the funds of the Corporation in the course of a year are entitled to send

Delegates to our nnnult General Meeting. ln this way the churches can become closely involved in

the ongoing ministry of the Corporation.

By remembering us in Your will.
The help of friends wh-o have remembered the work in their wills has been a source of great

encouragement over the years. A "Form of Bequest" is given below, which may be used in this

connection.
,,1 give and bequeath to the Treasurer for the time being of the GRACE BAPTIST TRUST

CdRpOnnflON the sum of f_free of duties to be applied to the general purposes of

the said Corporation, and I Oirect tnat the receipt of the said Treasurer shall be taken and

deemed a sufficient discharge for the same'"

By telting others about our work and encouraging them to support us'

i6" ,,"V f..,rve friends who are not familiar withlfre ministry of the Grace Baptist Trust Corporation'

Tell them about the many services we offer and all the help and advice we can give'

By telling us about the needs of churches and individuals'
We administer a number of funds that are to be used for the benefit of others when they are in need'

Sometimes we know about the need, and sometimes we do not. lf you know of a church or church

member who needs our help, and you feel it is appropriate to let us know, we would love to hear from

you.
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